
 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING 
           Trustees                . 
John Thibeau, President 

John Paff, Clerk 

Debbie Crandell 

Bill Phillips 

Brian Swanson 

Lexi Rohrer, Student Rep 

 DATE: Thursday, November 17, 2016 
 

 TIME: 6:00 p.m.  Closed Session 

  7:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

LOCATION: Pacific Grove High School – Student Union 

  615 Sunset Avenue 

  Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
 

 

The Board of Education welcomes you to its meetings, which are regularly scheduled for the first and third Thursdays of the 

month. Regular Board Meetings shall be adjourned by 10:00 pm, unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority 

of the Board.  This meeting may be extended no more than once and may be adjourned to a later date. Individuals who 

require special accommodation, including but not limited to an American Sign Language interpreter, accessible seating or 

documentation in accessible formats, should contact the Superintendent at least two days before the meeting date. 
 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open 

session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 435 Hillcrest 

Avenue, Pacific Grove during normal business hours. 
 

 

AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

I. OPENING BUSINESS 
 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Roll Call 

 

C. Adoption of Agenda 

 

II. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Identify Closed Session Topics  

The Board of Education will meet in Closed Session to consider matters appropriate for Closed 

Session in accordance with Education and Government Code. 

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA for 

2016/17 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 

and its designated representatives, Matt Bell, Rick Miller and Ralph Gómez Porras, for the 

purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 

 

 

Site Visit 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 1



 

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA for 

2016/17. [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 

and its designated representatives, Ralph Gómez Porras and Billie Mankey, for the purpose of 

giving direction and updates. 

 

3.  Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (1 case) [Government Code § 54957] 

 

B. Public comment on Closed Session items 

 

C. Adjourn to Closed Session  

 

III. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 

A. Report action taken in Closed Session 

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session preparation with the PGTA for 2016/17  

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session preparation with the CSEA for 2016/17  

 

3.  Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (1 case) [Government Code § 54957] 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance  

   

IV. SITE PRESENTATIONS 

 

Once a year, Board meetings are held at all school sites.  This provides administration and staff with an 

opportunity to showcase their school’s accomplishments.  

 

Pacific Grove High School’s presentation is: The Why of the Wave  
 

V. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Written Communication 

 

B. Board Member Comments 

 

C. Superintendent Report 

 

D.  Board Subcommittee Reports: Monterey County School Board Association 

 

E.  PGUSD Staff Comments 

 

VI. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard.  The Board 

may limit comments to no more than three (3) minutes for each agenda or non-agenda item; a total time for public 

input on each item is 20 minutes, pursuant to Board Policy 9323.  Public comment will also be allowed on each 

specific action item prior to Board action thereon. This meeting of the Board of Education is a business meeting of 

the Board, conducted in public. Please note that the Brown Act limits the Board’s ability to respond to public 

comment. The Board may choose to direct items to the Administration for action or place an item on a future 

agenda. 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 2



 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and/or may have been discussed at a previous 

Board meeting.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of the Board 

requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda. Each item on the Consent Agenda 

approved by the Board of Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.  

  
 Page 

A. Minutes of October 27, 2016 Board Meeting 5 

Recommendation:  (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent)  TheAdministration recommends  

approval of minutes as presented. 

 

B. Certificated Assignment Order #6 11 

Recommendation:  (Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources) The Administration 

recommends adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #6. 

 

C. Classified Assignment Order #6 13  

Recommendation:  (Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources) The Administration  

recommends adoption of Classified Assignment Order #6. 

 

D. Acceptance of Donations 15  

Recommendation:  (Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 

that the Board approve acceptance of the donations referenced below. 

 

E. Out of County or Overnight Activities 16 

Recommendation:  (Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 

that the Board approve or receive the request as presented. 

 

F. Warrant Schedules No. 577 21 

Recommendation:  (Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent) As Assistant Superintendent for  

Business Services, I certify that I have reviewed the attached warrants for consistency with the  

District’s budget, and purchasing and accounting practices and therefore, recommend Board  

approval. 

 

G. Pacific Grove Community High School Graduation Requirements for 2017-2018         23 

Recommendation:  (Matt Bell, Community High School Principal) The Pacific Grove  

Community High School Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the  

Pacific Grove Community High School Graduation Requirements commencing with the  

2017-2018 school year. 
 

Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Vote: _____________  

 

VIII. ACTION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. Adoption of Resolution #986- Issuance and Sale of 2014 Election Series B Education 

Technology Bonds                            26 

Recommendation:  (Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent) The District Administration  

recommends that the Board review and approve the Resolution #986, which will allow the 

District to issue Education Technology General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 

 Thibeau ___    Paff ___    Crandell ___    Phillips  ___    Swanson ___ 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 3



 

 

B. Job Description Coordinator of Technology Systems                 77 

Recommendation:  (Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources) The Administration  

recommends the Board review and approve the classified management position of Coordinator 

of Technology Systems, job description and salary.  

 

Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Vote: _____________  

 

C. Board Calendar/Future Meetings 81 

Recommendation:  (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends 

that the Board review and possibly modify meeting dates on the attached calendar and determine, 

given information from the Administration, whether additional Board dates or modifications need  

to be established.  

 

Move: _____________        Second: _____________        Vote: _____________  

 
IX.   INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. Robert Down Elementary and Forest Grove Elementary Portables           84  

Recommendation:  (Matt Kelly, Director of Facilities and Transportation) The District  

Administration recommends that the Board review and provide feedback for a portable  

classroom replacement at Robert Down Elementary School and a new portable at Forest Grove 

Elementary School. 

 

Board Direction:  

 

B. Student Emotional Counseling Report                    90 

Recommendation:  (Matt Bell, Pacific Grove High School Principal) Pacific Grove High School 

Administration recommends that the Board review the information provided regarding counseling services 

offered to students at Pacific Grove High School.  

 

Board Direction:  

 

C. Future Agenda Items 96 

Recommendation:  (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends that 

the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct Administration to add items to the list 

and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 

Senior Class Projects Review (December 8)  

Homework Policy Review (January 12) 

Bus Schedule 

Spanish Class at Elementary Schools 

Pebble Beach Housing Project 
 

  Board Direction:  

 
X.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

Next organizational meeting: December 8, 2016 – District Office 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 4



 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Minutes of Regular Meeting of October 27, 2016 – Pacific Grove Adult Education 

 

I. OPENED BUSINESS    

 

A. Called to Order   6:04 p.m. 

 

B. Roll Call  President: Trustee Thibeau 

  Clerk: Trustee Paff 

  Trustees Present: Trustee Crandell 

Trustee Phillips 

Trustee Swanson 

  Administration Present: Superintendent Porras 

   Assistant Superintendent Miller 

  Board Recorder: Mandi Freitag 

 Student Board Member: Lexi Rohrer 

 

C. Adopted Agenda 

 

Information/Discussion Item C was moved to Item A.  

 

MOTION Crandell/Swanson to adopt agenda as presented. 

Public comment:  none  

Motion CARRIED 4 – 0  

  

II. CLOSED SESSION   
 

A. Identified Closed Session Topics  

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA 

for 2016/17 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public 

school employer and its designated representatives, Matt Bell, Rick Miller and Ralph 

Gómez Porras, for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA 

for 2016/17. [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public 

school employer and its designated representatives, Ralph Gómez Porras and Billie 

Mankey, for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 

3.  Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (1 case) [Government Code § 54957] 

 

4.  Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Existing Litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) 

of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9.  

           DFEH No. 762366-230929  

 

B. Public comment on Closed Session Topics 

 

None.  

 

C. Adjourned to Closed Session  6:07 p.m. 

 

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 5



 

 

III. RECONVENED IN OPEN SESSION  7:11 p.m.  

 

A. Reported action taken in Closed Session: 

 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session preparation with the PGTA for 2016/17  

 

The Board discussed this item and gave direction to Administration.  

 

2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session preparation with the CSEA for 2016/17  

 

The Board did not discuss this item.  

 

3.  Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (1 case) [Government Code § 54957] 

 

The Board discussed this item and gave direction to Administration.  

 

4.  Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Existing Litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) 

of subdivision (d) of Government Code section 54956.9.  

           DFEH No. 762366-230929 

 

The Board voted 5 – 0 to approve the litigation pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision 

(d) of Government Code section 54956.9. DFEH No. 762366-230929 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance Led By: Jane Weichart 

 

IV. SITE PRESENTATIONS 

 

The Pacific Grove Adult Education presentation: Pacific Grove Adult School: Lighting the Way  

 

Pacific Grove Adult Education Principal Barbara Martinez presented to the Board, showcasing 

technology and the state of Adult Education, then toured classrooms and technology in action.  

 

Trustee Thibeau said the PG Adult Education has raised the bar higher each year, miraculous 

what has been done at the Adult Education and said the staff was wonderful. 

 

Trustee Phillips said the funding for PG Adult Education in the past was heartbreaking, and he is 

so glad to see the funding is back. Also noted the apprentice program was great.  

 

Trustee Crandell mirrored comments, and thanked leadership at PG Adult Education.  

 

Trustee Swanson said he had nothing but praise for the Adult Education and said it was great to 

see the trait and certificate programs, happy that members of the community are supporting the 

adult school, and gave kudos to the murals.  

 

Trustee Paff had questions regarding the apprenticeship program, and thanked the PG Adult 

Education for a great job.  

 

Superintendent Porras noted the face of Adult Education in the state has changed rapidly, 

acknowledged Principal Martinez for immersing herself in adult education, fighting for adult 

education at a state level and locally, saying he was proud of the work she was doing, and 

thanked all the instructors at PG Adult Education.  

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 6



 

 

V. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

A. Written Communication 

 

The Board received an email regarding counseling.  

 

Trustee Paff received an email regarding an agenda item. 

 

B. Board Member Comments 

 

Student Representative Jane Weichert provided the Board an update of events happening at 

Pacific Grove High School. 

 

Trustee Paff thanked the Pacific Grove Middle School staff for their hospitality on his recent 

site visit.  

 

C. Superintendent Report 

 

Superintendent Porras thanked Director of Maintenance and Transportation Matt Kelly, as 

well as his staff, for all their work on facilities, maintenance and transportation, thanking 

Kelly for his great leadership. 

 

D. PGUSD Staff Comments (Non Agenda Items) 

 

Director of Curriculum and Special Projects Ani Silva thanked Principal Martinez for the 

Burlington English ESL at the adult school. 

 

Pacific Grove High School Assistant Principal Sean Keller celebrated VAPA/Hispanic 

Heritage week, and noted the CTE industry partner sent forms home to parents to build CTE 

intern and mentorships. 

 

Pacific Grove High School Principal Matt Bell congratulated student golfer Rachel Choy who 

got a hole in one.  

 

Director of Education Technology Matthew Binder highlighted guest speaker Josh Ochs on 

his upcoming presentation on safe, smart social media. Binder also thanked Assistant 

Superintendent Rick Miller, Student Safety Director Barbara Martinez, and Director of 

Curriculum and Special Projects Ani Silva for coming together to make this event happen.  

 

Pacific Grove Middle School Assistant Principal Jason Tovani noted a training scheduled at 

CHOMP for students. 

 

Janine and Marin thanked the Board, Principal Martinez and Director Silva for their work 

with Burlington English. 

 

Forest Grove Principal Buck Roggeman invited the Board to watch the students costume 

parade on Halloween. 

 

Nutrition Director Dianne Hobson invited the Board to attend the annual football BBQ. 

 

Jennifer Ross noted that she and Diane Beron completed the Safe School Certification. 

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 7



 

 

Robert Down Principal Linda Williams invited the Board to a PG Library fundraiser, as well 

as to watch the students costume parade on Halloween. 

 

Adult School teacher Ken Ottmar thanked the Adult School and the teachers for an awesome 

job. 

 

VI. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

 

None. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA    

 

A. Minutes of October 6, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 

B.  Certificated Assignment Order #5   

C. Classified Assignment Order #5 

D. Out of County or Overnight Activities    

 

 MOTION Crandell/Paff to approve consent agenda as presented. 

Public comment:  none  

Motion CARRIED 5 – 0 

 

VIII. ACTION/DISCUSSION  

 

A. Resolution #985 Supporting Proposition 55             

  

Superintendent Porras presented information to the Board. The Board discussed this item.  

 

MOTION Crandell/Phillips to approve Resolution #985 Supporting Proposition 55.  

Public comment: none  

Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 4 – 1  

 

B. Pacific Grove High School Choir Course                 

 

Pacific Grove High School Principal Matt Bell presented information to the Board. The 

Board discussed this item, and thanked Olivia Caine.  

 

MOTION Swanson/Crandell to approve the Pacific Grove High School Choir 

Course to begin immediately.  

Public comment:  

Olivia Caine thanked the Board for considering this item, thanked Administration, and 

was so happy.  

Motion CARRIED 5 – 0 

 

C. Board Calendar/Future Meetings  

 

No action taken.  

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 8



 

 

IX. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. Pacific Grove Adult Education Childcare Center  

 

Adult Education Principal Barbara Martinez and Director of Maintenance and Transportation 

Matt Kelly presented information to the Board including a discussion with the Board on the 

existing site and plans. The Board discussed this item, including risks and funding concerns.  

 

B. Review of the Free and Reduced Meals Program  

 

Assistant Superintendent Rick Miller presented information to the Board. The Board 

discussed this item. 

 

Public Comment: 

Marge Ann of Cedar St. Times asked about the potential influx from the Pebble Beach 

housing project. Miller noted it would likely make only a slight difference.  

 

MOTION Paff/Crandell to extend the meeting to 10:45 p.m.  

Public comment: none  

Motion CARRIED 5 – 0 

 

C. Information Regarding the Issuance of Series B of the Ed Tech Bond    

 

Assistant Superintendent Rick Miller and Dale Scott of Dale Scott & Co. presented 

information to the Board. The Board discussed this item, including interest rates, budget 

concerns. The Board directed Administration to review and understand all marketing material 

and bring this item back as an Action item.  

 

D. Pacific Grove Middle School Math Update  

 

Pacific Grove Middle School Principal Sean Roach presented information to the Board. The 

Board thanked Roach for his work and the change he is making.  

 

E. Increasing Counselor FTE for Robert Down and Forest Grove Elementary Schools 

 

Director of Student Services Clare Davies presented information to the Board. The Board 

discussed this item along with Principal Roggeman, Principal Williams, and Counselor Sonda 

Frudden. The Board discussed this item including needs of students, finances. The Board 

deferred to Administration to determine the need.  

 

F. Robert Down Elementary and Forest Grove Elementary Portables 

  

This item will be brought back to the next Board meeting on Thursday, November 17, 2016.  

 

G. Future Agenda Items  

 

California Healthy Kids Survey Follow-Up (November 17) 

Senior Class Projects Review (November 17)  

Homework Policy Review (November 17) 

Spanish Class at Elementary Schools 

Pebble Beach Housing Project 

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 9



 

 

 

The Board requested the bus schedule and double-up days be added to future agenda.  

 

X.  ADJOURNED 10:51 p.m. 

 

 Approved and submitted: 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

 

 Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 

 Secretary to the Board 

Consent Agenda Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 10



SUBJECT: Certificated Assignment Order #6             

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

  

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The administration recommends adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #6 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the Superintendent and the 

Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available for each position.  Recruitment and 

selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet 

through the Pacific Grove Unified School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and 

other recruitment websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after 

weighing the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and confidential 

reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, disability 

or sexual orientation.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Persons listed in the Certificated Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of Education for 

employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of Education for employment prior to 

receipt of the criminal background summary.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 

 

Consent Agenda Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 11



 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT   

CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 6 

November 17, 2016 

 

 

TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT: 

Ali Lyon, RDE, Kinder Teacher, Temporary Long Term Substitute, 0.50 FTE, Column III, Step 4, effective 

November 1, 2016 through June 2, 2017 only (new position) 

 

Lindsay Munoz, PGHS, AP, Temporary, Short-term, paid daily at the AP Management Salary Schedule 

Rate, Cell 8 effective Friday, November 4, 2016 through November 11, 2016 only 

 

CHANGE OF ASSIGNMENT: 

Maurisa Alt, from PGAS, Parent Education Instructor, to FGE Teacher (TK), Part-time, 0.50 FTE, Column I, 

Step 3, effective upon completion of successful recruitment for PGAS Parent Ed Instructor (replaces Nicki 

Klevan who permanently reduced FTE) 

 

Before and/or After School EL Tutoring, 3 hours per week, paid at the hourly instructional rate, effective 

2016-17 school year: 

FGE: Jayne Lord 

 

2016-17 PAR PANEL, approximately 1.5 hrs./month, paid per time sheet at the PGTA hourly instructional 

rate: 

Christina Renteria, Kathy Hunter 

 

2016-17 GATE Classes, paid at the PGTA certificated hourly rate, effective November 1, 2016 

Employee Site GATE Assignment Schedule, Not to Exceed Funding 

Barbara Priest PGMS Music 1.5 hrs./week GATE 

 

SUBSTITUTES: 

Madelyn Eberly, PGHS Science, Long-term sub, effective November 7, 2016 through April 17, 2017 

(replaces Adrianne D’Amico during maternity/child rearing leave) 

 

Jeff McDowell, PGMS PE, Long-term sub, effective November 8, 2016 and until recruitment procedures are 

complete for an incumbent probationary offer of employment 

 

Melissa Andersen 

Jillian Bergren 

Megan DeCampli 

Alan Estrada 

Craig Kelso 

Anne Perry 

Consent Agenda Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 12



REVISED: Page 1 of 2 

 

SUBJECT: Classified Assignment Order #6   

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

______________________________________________________________________ 

            

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The administration recommends adoption of Classified Assignment Order #6. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the Superintendent and 

the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available for each position.  Recruitment 

and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the 

internet through the Pacific Grove Unified School District website, Monterey County Office of Education 

website and other recruitment websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is 

made after weighing the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, 

and confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, religion, 

national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Persons listed in the Classified Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of Education for 

employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of Education for employment prior 

to receipt of the criminal background summary.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 

 

  

Consent Agenda Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 13



 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ORDER NO. 6 

November 17, 2016 

REVISED: 2 of 2 

NEW HIRE: 

Monica Valero, District Confidential Payroll/Benefits Specialist, full-time, 8 hours per day, 5 days 

per week, 12 month work calendar, Confidential Range, Step E, effective December 1, 2016 

(replaces retiree, Carole Anloff) 

 

TEMPORARY, ADDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT:  

Maria Sicairos, PGHS, Math Tutor, Temporary, 2 hours per week, paid per time sheet, Range 30, Step E, 

effective October 21, 2016 through June 2, 2017 only 

 

Maria Sicairos, PGMS, EL Tutor After School, Temporary, 2 hours per week, paid per time sheet, Range 

30, Step E, effective November 1, 2016 through June 2, 2017 only (Title III LEP funding) 

 

Ariana Macias Rivera, PGMS, Instructional Assistant (EL) 3 hours per week, paid per time sheet Range 

30, Step E, effective November 7, 2016 through June 2, 2017 

 

SUBSTITUTE: 

George Vigil, Custodial 

Consent Agenda Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 14



SUBJECT: Acceptance of Donations 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends that the Board approve acceptance of donations referenced below. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

During the past month the following donations were received: 

 

Forest Grove Elementary School 

Wells Fargo Community Support     $   400 

PG Pride       $3,075  (September grants) 

 

Robert H. Down Elementary School 

PG Pride       $6,211   (August grants) 

PG Pride       $   433  (September grants) 

       

Pacific Grove Middle School  

PG Pride       $7,750  (August grants) 

Mr. & Mrs. Ballerini      $   100  (Garden habitat) 

Sasha Howard       $   100  (Garden habitat) 

Mr. & Mrs. Brian Jameson     $   100  (Garden habitat) 

Big Sur Marathon      $1,250  (undesignated) 

Walt Bennett       Violin  (valued $506) 

 

Pacific Grove High School  

PG Pride       $2,500  (September grants) 

AFCEA Educational Foundation     $1,000  (STEM/Richmond) 

 

       

Pacific Grove Community High School  

None 

 

Pacific Grove Adult School /Lighthouse Preschool &  

Preschool Plus Co-op       

None 

  

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Monterey Peninsula Foundation     $10,000  (GATE) 

 
Ref: Donations 

 

Consent Agenda Item D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 15



 

SUBJECT: Out of County or Overnight Activities 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Administration recommends that the Board approve or receive the request as presented. 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 

Board Policy 6153 requires prior approval of all school sponsored trips.  Out of County/State or overnight 

trips require Board approval.  Other trips may be approved by the Superintendent or designee.   

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The attached list identifies an overnight/Out of County/State trip(s) being proposed by a school site at this 

time.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The request has an identified cost and associated source of funds.  The activities expose the District to 

increased liability with a resulting potential for financial impact.  

Consent Agenda Item E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 16



 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

                                                                    OUT-OF-COUNTY OR OVERNIGHT ACTIVITIES 

 

DATE          STUDENTS/CLASS 

DESTINATION  ACTIVITY                        TRANSPORTATION      COST   FUNDING SOURCE 
March 10, 2017   RD 4th Grade classes           Auto    $250   PG Pride grant 

Mission San Juan Bautista         Mission tour 

Historical Park 

San Bautista, CA 

 

November 17-19  HS Choir            Auto    $150   Student funded 

First United Methodist Church 

Palo Alto, CA 

 

Nov., 2016-March, 2017  Athletics Events        District bus/Charter    TBD       District Athletics 

Various Cities   See Attached 

 
 

Consent Agenda Item E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 17



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY

INSTRUCTIONS: Submit this form to the Transportation Department i f transportation requires use of buses or vans.
Other forms go directly to Business Office. After District and/or Board approval, the form w i l l be returned to the school
site. For in-state or non-overnight a c t i v i t i e s submit form two weeks in advance of activit ies.

BOARD APPROVAL IS R E Q U I R E D FOR ALL OUT-OF-COUNTY. OLT-OF-STATE. OR O V E R N I G H T
ACTIVITIES. THE REQUEST MUST BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD PRIOR TO THE EVENT.

THEREFORE THE REQUEST M U S K BE SUBMITTED AT LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD
MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT

Dale of Act iv i iv of Activity

Place of Act iv i iv ?QL\ ArvVfr ; C

School Grade Le\el

School Departure Time "7" CLQ AM t<^ _ PM

Pickup Time From PUi- u f . -Wui iy <S~IOQ AM PMv 11 VTT
.o V.

Name of Employee Accompanying Students V"V\VC-V\.-£-\A'€-

Number of Adults c^ Number of Students (

Class or Club _

Description of A c t i v i t y

Education Objective

List All Stops T

I +• I
Cl ACLd *-" O

/X (Aij

Means of Transportation: l ) 84 Passenger ( ) 72 Passenger ( ) 48 Passenger ( ) 1 8 Passenger
( ) Charter (/^Auto* ( ) \ \alk ( ) Other** __

*#'s 1, 2, 3, 5, 6. .& 7 Must Be Completed Before Submitting To The Business Office /Transportation Dcpartniffi *
1. NOTE: Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements Will Be Complied With When Using Private Autos \V\. If using vans, you MUST list who the drivers are.

! 3. Cost of A c t i v i t y $_._ __(_.^_Q
4. Cost of Transportation $_

Total Cost (Activity + Transportation) 5
5. Fund to be Charged for all activity expenses:

6. Requested B
Employee's Signature AND Printed Name (Employee accompanying students on activity)

7. Recommend Approval _>g38WkP^SfcC_--.-n Date

Transportation Department/District Office Use Only

Bus(s) ( ( A v a i l a b l e ( )Nol Ava i lab le Date Received

C'os; Estimate S

Approved B\

Approved |}y_
T/aiisnortaUii!i^ypcrvisor

Date

Da:e of Board Approval
ssistani Superintendent

L!pclated 12/15 15

Consent Agenda Item E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 18



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Cc^^^-a /&/,-
REQUEST FOR OFF CAMPUS ACTIVITY

INSTRUCTIONS: Submit this form to the Transportation Department if transportation requires use of buses or vans.
Other forms go directly to Business Office. After District and/or Board approval, the form will be returned to the school
site. For in-state or non-ovemight activities submit form two weeks in advance of activities.

BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR ALL OUT-OF-COUNTY. OUT-OF-STATE. OR OVERNIGHT
ACTIVITIES. THE REQUEST MUST BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD PRIOR TO THE EVENT.

THEREFORE THE REQUEST MUST BE SUBMITTED AT LEAST TWO (2) WEEKS PRIOR TO THE BOARD
MEETING PRIOR TO THE EVENT

i A / . « *+

Date of Activity

School Departure Time

Pickup Time From Place ofActivity <x ' &&

Name of Employee Accompanying Students Q •

Number of Adults / ^j Number of Students
f~

ClassorClub

l/dst!

/ L£>

Description of Activity CA

Education objective
List AII stops

- £>n £/£ ttisfary
P0i>f ' fa / M''SS / 7 ?

MJS5/&n
Means of Transportation: ( ) 84 Passenger

( ) Charter (
e r - A
\JM

) 72 Passenger ( ) 48 Passenger ( ) 18 Passenger
Auto* ( ) Walk ( ) Other** _

*#''s 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, & 7 Must Be Completed Before Submitting To The Business Office /Transportation Pep

(Teachers Initials)
1. NOTE: Board Regulation 3541.1 Requirements Will Be Complied With When Using Private Autos

2. If using vans, you MUST list who the drivers are.

3. Cost ofActivity S'C
4. Cost of Transportation $_

Total Cost (Activity + Transportation) S
5. Fund to be Charged for all activity expenses:

6. Requested By

( ) Acct. Code
( ) Students *
( 1/yothe-r r&

/ S - Date Qcj~. ~l2O/C=i

7. Recommend A

AND Printed N&me (Employee accompanying students on activity)

Date ' "~ /""">
krcipal's Signature

Transportation Department/District Office Use Only

Bus(s)

Cost Estimate $

Approved By

Approved By

( ) Available (

:$

s-~\l

I Approval KJ CT\t Available

fejfion Supervisor

Superintendent

Date Received

Date

Date

RECEIVED

OCT 1 0 2016

u N i n r o ; . ; -H< ><x D I S T R I C T

(b Updated 12/15/15

Consent Agenda Item E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 19



2016 PGHS Athletics

Winter 0 iCT Of C^t^Ty °t OV&lt

Date Team Event Teams Transportation Time County

Boys Basketball

11/29/16

12/1-12/3/15

Girls Soccer
12/6/16

Boys Soccer

12/9/16

12/15/16

1/10/17

1/12/17

2/14/17

Girls Basketball

12/13/16
12/15/16

Wrestling

12/3/16
12/10/16

12/17/16

12/17/16

1/7/17

1/14/17

1/14/17

1/28/17

2/19/17

2/20/17

3/4/17

BBB

BBS

GS

BS

BS

BS

BS

BS

GBB

GBB

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

San Benito

San Benito Tournament

Prospect HS (SJ)

Soquel

SLV

Oakwood

PCH

Anzar

Aptos
Santa Cruz

Harbor Tournament
Webber Tournament

Buzolich Classic

Lynbrook Tournament

Apple Cider (Watsonville)

Bert Mar Invitational (Gilroy)

Wildcat Invitational (Los Gatos)

Dawn to Dusk ( Kentfield)

CCS Championship ( San Jose)

CCS Championship ( San Jose)

CIF State Championship

F/ JV/ V

JV

JV/ VAR

JV/VA R

JV/Var

Varsity

Varsity

Varsity

JV/ Varsity
JV/Varsity

JV
Varsity

Varsity

JV

Varsity

Varsity

JV

Varsity

Varsity

Varsity

Varsity

Bus /Van

Bus and Vans

Bus

Bus

Bus

Bus

Bus

Bus

Bus
Bus

Vans
Van

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

Vans

2:30

TBA

1:15

2:15

3:30

1:45

1:45

1:45

2:30
2:30

10:00
10:00

6:30

7:00

6:00am

6:00am

6:00am

9:00am

9:00am

9:00am

9:00am

San Benito

San Benito

Santa Clara

Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz

Santa Clara

Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz
Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz
Santa Clara

Santa Clara

Santa Clara

Santa Cruz

Santa Clara

Santa Clara

Marin

Santa Clara

Santa Clara

Bakerfield

BOLD are overnight and will require added paperwork

Consent Agenda Item E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 20



SUBJECT:  Warrant Schedule 577 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

As Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, I certify that I have reviewed the attached warrants for 

consistency with the District’s budget, and purchasing and accounting practices and therefore, 

recommend Board approval. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The attached listing of warrants identifies payments made by the District during the noted time period 

from September 29, 2016 through October 31, 2016. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Prior to the issuance of the warrants, District procedures have been followed to ensure the appropriateness 

of the item purchased, the correctness of the amount to be paid, and that funds were available within the 

appropriate budget.  All necessary site, department, and district authorizations have been obtained. 

 

Please note a full copy of the warrants are available by request.  

Consent Agenda Item F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 21



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARRANT SCHEDULE NO. 577

Warrants- Payroll

OCTOBER'16

Certificated- Regular 10/05/16
Regular 10/10/16
Regular 10/14/16
Regular 10/31/16

Total Certificated

0
5,485.44

0
1,384,330.58

1.389.816.02

Other- Regular 10/05/16
Regular 10/10/16
Regular 10/14/16
Regular 10/31/16

Total Other

0
I)
0
I)

Classified- Regular 10/05/16
Regular 10/10/16
Regular 10/14/16
Regular 10/31/16

Total Classified

S
S
S

0
135.30

0
510,420.96

510.556.26

TOTAL PAYROLL 1.900.372.28

Warrants- AP

Warrants 12264986 through 12265009 (09/29/16)

Warrants 12265685 through 12265716 (10/04/16)

Warrants 12266321 through 12266347 (10/06/16)

Warrants 12266984 through 12267016 (10/11/16)

Warrants 12267754 through 12267764 (10/13/16)

Warrants 12268557 through 12268579 (10/18/16)

Warrants 12269349 through 12269375 (10/20/16)

Warrants 12270024 through 12270044 (10/25/16)

Warrants 12271493 through 12271501 (10/27/16)

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

22,698.76

47,363.81

164.230.88

73.833.74

16,779.89

41,643.66

60,293.70

14,866.11

20,568.88

TOTAL WARRANTS 2,362,651.71

Consent Agenda Item F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 22



  

SUBJECT: Pacific Grove Community High School Graduation Requirements for 2017-2018  

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:   Matt Bell, Community High School Principal 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

The Pacific Grove Community High School Administration recommends that the Board review and 

approve the Pacific Grove Community High School Graduation Requirements commencing with the 

2017-2018 school year. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The staff at Pacific Grove Community High School has reviewed the graduation requirements and course 

offerings for the 2017-2018 school year due to the changing curricular needs. The two courses to be 

revised are part of an ongoing discussion with staff and the School Site Council for the last two years with 

the plans to implement these changes for the 2017-2018 school year.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The proposed changes include the following: 

 

 Health credits will be increased from 2.5 to 5, along with an updated course description. 

Based on the Healthy Kids Surveys, instruction will better address students’ emotional and 

mental health. Instruction will also increase in nutrition and health, emphasizing healthy lifelong 

eating habits. 

 

 Vocational Education credits will be increased from 2.5 to 5 along with an updated course 

description. Based on the newly revised mission statement of Pacific Grove Community High 

School, and on mission statements in schools across the nation, expanding our Career and 

Technical Education/Vocational Education course offerings will help our students to be more 

college and career ready. 

 

These changes will bring Pacific Grove Community High School into better alignment with Pacific Grove 

High School, increasing the total credits to graduate from 195 to 200. If approved, both high schools will 

have 170 credits in the required subjects. The only difference would be in the elective credits. 

 

If these changes are approved this year the teachers will be able to collaborate and plan for the 2017-2018 

school year. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None 

 

Consent Agenda Item G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 23



PACIFIC GROVE COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

2016-2017 

To earn a high school diploma from Pacific Grove Community High School a student must earn a 

minimum of 195 units of credit and complete 48 hours of Community Service. 

165 credits must be in the required subjects listed below plus 30 credits of Electives. 

 

40 credits English    

10 credits each in English 1, 2, 3, and 4  

40 credits Social Studies 

 10 credits Geography 

 10 credits World History 

 10 credits US History 

 5 credits Government 

 5 credits Economics 

 

20 credits Science 

 10 credits  Life Science 

 10 credits Physical Science 

 

20 credits Mathematics   

Must include Integrated Math II or equivalent 

20 credits Physical Education 

10 credits Fine Arts or Foreign Language 

10 credits Computer Arts   

5 credits Microsoft Office  

5 credits Multi-media projects 

 

5 credits Health/Vocational Ed  

 2.5 credits Health 

 2.5 credits Vocational Ed 

 

30 credits  Electives 

Consent Agenda Item G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 24



PACIFIC GROVE COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

2017-2018 

To earn a high school diploma from Pacific Grove Community High School a student must earn a 

minimum of 200 units of credit and complete 48 hours of Community Service. 

170 credits must be in the required subjects listed below plus 30 credits of Electives. 

 

40 credits English    

10 credits each in English 1, 2, 3, and 4  

40 credits Social Studies 

 10 credits Geography 

 10 credits World History 

 10 credits US History 

 5 credits Government 

 5 credits Economics 

 

20 credits Science 

 10 credits  Life Science 

 10 credits Physical Science 

 

20 credits Mathematics   

Must include Integrated Math II or equivalent 

20 credits Physical Education 

10 credits Fine Arts or Foreign Language 

10 credits Computer Arts   

5 credits Microsoft Office  

5 credits Multi-media projects 

 

10 credits Health/Vocational Ed  

 5 credits Health 

 5 credits Vocational Ed 

 

30 credits  Electives 

Consent Agenda Item G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 25



SUBJECT: Adoption of Resolution #986 - Issuance and Sale of 2014 Election Series B
Education Technology Bonds.

PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Rick Miller, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services

RECOMMENDATION:

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the Resolution
#986, which will allow the District to issue Education Technology General Obligation Bonds.

BACKGROUND:

On November 4, 2014, an election was held for the purpose of issuing $18 million in General
Obligation bonds to be expended on education technology. The voters of Pacific Grove voted in
favor of the 18-year bond with a 59.79% approval rate. The total votes cast were 6,724, with
4,020 voting yes and 2,704 voting no.

Series A of this bond was issued following the election in November, 2014 in the amount of
$2,328,234 and has been fully expended.

INFORMATION:

This resolution will approve the issuance of Series B of the 2014 election, at an amount not to
exceed $2,500,000. This resolution also approves guidelines and terms relating to the issuance
of the bonds.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Will provide approximately $2,500,000 which will be used for education technology.

Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 26



 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

 
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 2014 ELECTION 
SERIES B GENERAL OBLIGATION ED TECH® BONDS OF THE DISTRICT IN THE 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,500,000 AND 
APPROVING RELATED DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 986 

 
 
WHEREAS, an election was duly and regularly held in the Pacific Grove Unified School 

District (the “District”) on November 4, 2014, in accordance with Section 1(b)(3) of Article XIIIA 
of the California Constitution, for the purpose of submitting Measure A (the “Bond Measure”) to 
the qualified electors of the District, authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds in the 
aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000 (the “Bonds”), and more than 55% of the votes cast 
were in favor of the issuance of the Bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the District is authorized to provide for the 

issuance and sale of any series of Bonds under the provisions of Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 
1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Bond Law”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 12, 2015, the District issued its Pacific Grove Unified School 

District 2014 Election, Series A General Obligation Ed Tech® Bonds in the aggregate principal 
amount of $2,370,000 pursuant to the Bond Measure; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to authorize the issuance of a second of 
Bonds under the Bond Law for the purpose of financing technology projects authorized under 
the Bond Measure, designated the Pacific Grove Unified School District 2014 Election, Series B 

General Obligation Ed Tech® Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 

$2,500,000 (the “Series B Bonds”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to take its action approving the issuance and 
sale of the Series B Bonds and documents and actions relating to the Series B Bonds; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board hereby finds, determines, declares and resolves as 

follows: 
 

SECTION 1  Approval of Paying Agent Agreement.  The proposed form of Paying Agent 
Agreement, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association (the “Paying 
Agent”), which is on file with the Clerk of the Board (the “Paying Agent Agreement”) is hereby 
approved, and the Superintendent and Chief Business Official (each, an “Authorized Officer”) 
are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to execute 
and deliver the Paying Agent Agreement in substantially said form, with said additions thereto 
(including the insertion of the purchaser, maturity dates, principal amounts and interest rates of 
the Series B Bonds) and changes therein as the Authorized Officer may approve, such approval 
to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.  The Board hereby 
authorizes the issuance of the Series B Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Paying Agent 
Agreement, and the performance by the District of its obligations under the Paying Agent 
Agreement.  The selection of U.S. Bank National Association, as Paying Agent is hereby 

Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 27



 

approved and ratified.  Alternatively the County of Monterey Treasurer or other officer may act 
as Paying Agent. 
 

SECTION 2.  Sale of Series B Bonds. The Board hereby authorizes the Series B Bonds to 
be sold by negotiated sale on a direct placement basis to a qualified institutional buyer (a 
“Qualified Institutional Buyer”) within the meaning of Rule 144A promulgated under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or to an “accredited investor” as 
described in Section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities 
Act (an “Institutional Accredited Investor”) pursuant to the terms of a Bond Purchase Contract 
with the purchaser of the Series B Bonds in the form on file with the Clerk of the Board together 
with any changes therein or additions approved by a District Representative, such approval to 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Contract; 
provided that the Bond Purchase Contract shall contain the following terms: 

 
(i)  the Series B Bonds shall bear a rate of interest of not to exceed 8 percent 

per annum;  
 
(ii)  the Series B Bonds shall have a final maturity date of 30 years or less 

from the date of issuance; and 
 
(iii) the Series B Bonds shall have a ratio of total debt service to principal of 

not to exceed four to one. 
 
The Board hereby authorizes a District Representative to execute and deliver the final 

form of the Bond Purchase Contract in the name and on behalf of the District. 
 
In accordance with Section 53508.7 of the Bond Law, the Board has determined to sell 

the Series B Bonds at negotiated sale for the following reasons: (a) a negotiated sale provides 
more flexibility to choose the time and date of the sale which is advantageous in a volatile 
municipal bond market; and (b) a negotiated sale will permit the time schedule for the issuance 
and sale of the Series B Bonds to be expedited.   
 

SECTION 3.  Estimated Financing Costs.  The firm of Jones Hall, A Professional Law 
Corporation, has previously been engaged to act as the District’s bond counsel, the firm of Dale 
Scott & Company, has previously been engaged to act as the District’s financial advisor, and the 
firm of Brandis Tallman LLC has been engaged to perform placement agent services. The 
estimated costs of issuance associated with the bond sale are $110,000, which include bond 
counsel fees, financial advisor fees, placement agent fees, bank counsel fees and paying agent 
fees.  

 
As required pursuant to Section 53509.5 of the Bond Law, after the sale of the Series B 

Bonds, the Board will present actual cost information for the sale at its next scheduled public 
meeting. 
 

SECTION 4.  Tax Covenants. 
 
(a) Private Activity Bond Limitation. The District shall assure that the proceeds of the 

Series B Bonds are not used so as to cause the Series B Bonds to satisfy the private business 
tests of Section 141(b) of the Tax Code or the private loan financing test of Section 141(c) of the 
Tax Code. 

 

Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 28



 

(b) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or 
suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of the Series B 
Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Tax Code. 

 
(c) No Arbitrage. The District shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken by the 

Paying Agent or the County or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of the Series 
B Bonds which, if such action had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been 
deliberately and intentionally taken, on the Closing Date would have caused the Series B Bonds 
to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Tax Code. 

 
(d) Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The District shall take all actions necessary to 

assure the exclusion of interest on the Series B Bonds from the gross income of the Owners of 
the Series B Bonds to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross 
income under the Tax Code as in effect on the Closing Date. 

 
(e) Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and all actions necessary to assure 

compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment 
earnings, if any, to the federal government, to the extent that such section is applicable to the 
Series B Bonds.   
 

SECTION 5.  Approval of Official Actions to Close Transaction.  The Superintendent, the 
Chief Business Officer, the Clerk of the Board and any and all other officers of the District are 
each alone authorized and directed in the name and on behalf of the District to execute and 
deliver any and all certificates, requisitions, agreements, notices, consents, warrants and other 
documents, which they or any of them might deem necessary or appropriate in order to 
consummate the lawful issuance, sale and delivery of the Series B Bonds, including specifically 
a contract for professional services with Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, as bond 
counsel, Dale Scott & Company as Financial Advisor, and with Brandis Tallman LLC as 
placement agent, the proposed forms of contracts between the District and such firms being on 
file with the Superintendent. Whenever in this Resolution any officer of the District is authorized 
to execute or countersign any document or take any action, such execution, countersigning or 
action may be taken on behalf of such officer by any person designated by such officer to act on 
his or her behalf in the case such officer shall be absent or unavailable. 

 

Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 29



 

SECTION 6.  Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect from and after 
the date of its passage and adoption. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of November, 2016, by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 

  
President of the Board of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  

Clerk of the Board of Education 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

 
 
 
 

Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 30



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 31



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 32



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 33



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 34



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 35



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 36



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 37



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 38



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 39



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 40



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 41



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 42



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 43



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 44



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 45



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 46



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 47



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 48



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 49



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 50



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 51



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 52



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 53



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 54



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 55



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 56



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 57



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 58



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 59



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 60



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 61



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 62



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 63



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 64



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 65



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 66



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 67



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 68



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 69



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 70



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 71



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 72



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 73



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 74



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 75



Action/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 76



 

SUBJECT:   Job Description Coordinator of Technology Systems 

PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends the Board review and approve the classified management position of 

Coordinator of Technology Systems, job description and salary.  
 

BACKGROUND:  

 

This position will support managing the infrastructure of district technology 
 

INFORMATION/DESCRIPTION:   

 

The personnel plan for district-wide administrative technology is outlined below to include this 

position: 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPTIONS: 

 

Approve the plan for district wide administrative technology including updated salary schedule. 

1.  Approve the Coordinator of Technology Systems salary schedule and job description with additional 

recommendations. 

2.  Not approve the Coordinator of Technology Systems salary schedule and job description and provide 

alternative direction. 
 

FUNDING: 

 

Funding will depend on placement of person hired into this position, but is recommended within this range: 

Coordinator 

of 

Technology 

Systems 

225 91,008 94,016 97,036 100,065 103,108 106,159 109,220 112,294 

 

Director of District Technology Director of Curriculum/Special Projects 

Director of Educational Technology 

Classified Computer Lab Instructional Tech II 

Elementary Educational Technology 

(Teacher on Special Assignment) 

Certificated Tech Ningas 

Site Principals 

Coordinator of Technology 

Systems 

Action/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 77



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COORDINATOR OF TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS 

 

DESCRIPTION OF POSITION 
Under the direction of the Superintendent, and the Director of Educational and Informational Technology 

(Tech Director), this position assists in managing, evaluating, and coordinating all aspects of the district’s 

network operational infrastructure and server infrastructure. May supervise assigned technology staff as 

directed.  
 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS: 
Duties may include, but are not limited to the following: 

 Coordinate the implementation of the District Technology Plan with direction from the Director of 

Ed Tech & IT (Tech Director) as it relates to technology priorities and goals, systems, systems 

analysis and operational services and support including the integration of technology, professional 

development, technical infrastructure, technology leadership and accountability, technology funding 

and resources, and public awareness 

 Assist the Tech Director in district-wide server and client systems, infrastructure software and 

hardware troubleshooting & support 

 Plan, organize, install and maintain all district-wide technology including local and wide area 

networks 

 Implement, maintain, and monitor district-wide network and server security 

 Provide leadership and analysis to optimize the effectiveness and efficiency of District operations 

through the use of technology 

 In accordance with district educational technology plan, incorporate current and emerging 

technologies in short-range and long-range plans to include integration into existing systems 

throughout the District in support of student learning 

 Attend, participate and provide leadership in community and site meetings involving District 

technology plans and needs 

 Coordinate and develop standardization protocols and replacement timelines for technology software 

and hardware, technology acquisition, and technology implementation throughout the District 

 With both the Tech Director and Director of Ed Tech support and provide leadership to the District 

Technology Committee to create and maintain hardware and long range planning to support 

technology integration 

 Assist the Tech Director implement a scheduled preventive maintenance plan for all applicable 

software and hardware components 

 Assist the Tech Director implement, maintain, and monitor district-wide infrastructure disaster 

recovery 

 Assist in creation and maintenance of district-wide infrastructure documentation and 

software/hardware procedures 

 Coordinate and maintain district-wide structured cabling system and assist in documentation of the 

cabling system 

 Assist both the Tech Director and Ed Tech Director with implementation and maintenance of content 

filtering technology 

 Give feedback and recommendations to Tech Director for timelines & priorities for tech projects and 

tech helpdesk tickets 

 Supervise and train assigned Technology staff  

 Evaluate all applicable district-wide database and infrastructure implementations and policies 

 Support management and use of Student Information Systems 

 Assist and coordinate grant requests for technology funds and ensure compliance with the grant 

criteria 

 Review policies, operations, and procedures related to District technology plans and needs for 

effectiveness, making modifications to increase operational efficiency 

 Disseminate technology related information throughout the District 

 Contact vendors for technical purposes 

 Develop appropriate bid and quotation specifications 

Action/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 78



 
Coordinator of Technology Systems, Continued 

Page 2 

 Assist the Tech Director and Ed Tech Director monitor, update and maintain a state of the art district 

website with the assistance of appointed personnel 

 Monitor reporting system data entry for accuracy  

 Meet schedules and timelines and perform related duties as assigned 

 

KNOWLEDGE OF: 

 Modern information systems equipment including servers and microcomputers, terminals, printers 

and other appropriate hardware and communications equipment 

 Computer languages and programming fundamentals 

 Principles and operations of local and wide area networks, data communication systems and related 

software 

 Installation, maintenance and repair of information systems equipment 

 Educational technology, and resources to support the district’s instructional program 

 Trends and programs in professional development 

 Technology and computer software applications relative to instruction and administration 

 Principals and practices of leadership, management, supervision and training 

 Budgeting procedures and techniques 

 Information systems trends and developments 

 Design, implementation, and maintenance of local and wide area networks including WiFi networks 

 Applicable sections of State Education Code and other applicable state publications, such as 

curriculum frameworks and State Board Adopted Content Standards 

ABILITY TO: 

 Plan and implement the installation and use of integrated information technologies in an educational 

system 

 Stimulate and motivate cooperative team efforts and provide leadership 

 Integrate state of the art technology in everyday work and to demonstrate to diverse individuals and 

group’s ways of maximizing the benefits of technology in education 

 Train, supervise and evaluate assigned personnel 

 Organize and conduct training, staff development activities and to coordinate educational technology 

projects, conferences, events and activities 

 Meet timelines 

 Initiate, schedule and carry out a complex and diverse work plan 

 Conduct effective professional development in information technologies 

 Maintain current knowledge of technological advances in the field 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work 

 Troubleshoot hardware and software problems 

 Express ideas and concepts clearly and concisely in both oral and written form.  

 Maintain records and complete reports, including web-based reporting 

 Read, write and understand the English language 

 Learn quickly, work independently, and carry out oral and written instructions 

 Communicate and work effectively with the staff and the community 

 Work as an effective team leader within the district and with vendors 

 Work with others integrating technology into the instructional program 

 

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS: 
Incorporated within one or more of the essential functions of the position are the essential physical 

requirements.  

ABILITY TO: 

 See for purposes of working on the computer, observing support staff and reading materials, reports, 

budgets and other printed matter 

 

Action/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 79



Coordinator of Technology Systems, Continued 

Page 3 

 Understand speech at normal levels in person or on the telephone 

 Communicate so others will be able to clearly understand a normal conversation in person or on the 

telephone 

 Sit, stand, and walk for extended periods of time 

 Assemble and disassemble computer hardware 

 Operate equipment, computer, copy machine and other office equipment with dexterity. 

 Reach in all directions. 

 Climb and stand on ladders 

 Think clearly and rationally to solve problems, make good judgments and decisions. 

 Perform the essential functions of this position in an accurate, neat, timely fashion 

 Meet the travel requirements of this position including driving between school sites as needed. 

 Routinely move equipment and supplies weighing up to 30 pounds and to occasionally move 

equipment and supplies weighing up to 75 pounds. 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS: 
 Office and school site work environment subject to extensive travel between and within school sites, 

sitting at a desk for long periods of time, bending, crouching, or kneeling at files or equipment, climb 

and stand on ladders, pushing/pulling of file drawers, and reaching in all directions 

 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Three years experience planning, operating, and managing a technology information and network 

operational infrastructure and server infrastructure program including experience supervising 

technical personnel and supporting technology in an educational setting 

 Demonstrate expertise with network operations and maintenance and server maintenance 

 Two years technical experience managing Student Information Systems preferred 

 A Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university, preferably with a major in a computer 

science, management information systems, or a closely related field. Graduate degree(s) preferred 

 

 LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE: 

 Possession of a valid California Driver's license.  

 Computer licensing or certification or valid California Teaching Credential in a related field related 

to computers and/or technology is desirable 

 Valid CPR/First Aid Certification desirable. 

 
 

NOTE:  This list of essential functions and physical requirements is not exhaustive and may be 
supplemented as necessary in accordance with the requirements of the job.  Pacific Grove Unified 
School District adheres to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act regarding reasonable 
accommodation procedures. 

 
 
 

Board Adopted: 

Action/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 80



 

 

SUBJECT: Board Calendar/Future Meetings 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends that the Board review and possibly modify the schedule of meeting dates on 

the attached calendar and determine, given information from the Administration, whether additional Board 

dates or modifications need to be established.  

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

The Board has approved Bylaw 9320, which states that regular Board meetings be held on the first and third 

Thursday of each month, from August through June. At the annual organizational meeting held in December, 

Trustees approves the meeting calendar as presented. The calendar is reviewed at each Board meeting.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Changes to the Board meeting dates must be approved by a majority vote of the Trustees.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action/Discussion Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 81



 

 

Board Meeting Calendar, 2016/17 School Year 
 

 

Aug. 25 

 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Student Enrollment Update 

 Back to School dates 

 Property tax report 
 2016-2017 Consolidated Application  
 Maintenance/Facilities Update 

 

Sept. 8 

 

Regular Board Meeting  Forest Grove 
 Unaudited Actual Report (School Site Visit) 
 Budget Revision #1 
 Safety/Discipline Report 

 

Sept. 22 

 

Regular Board Meeting Robert Down 
 Board Goals – review/revise                                                            (School Site Visit) 

 

Oct. 6 

 

Regular Board Meeting Middle School 
 Superintendent’s Goals (School Site Visit) 
 Strategic Plan/LCAP Review Begins  
 Bus Ridership 

 

Oct. 27 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting Adult School 
    Review of Special Education Contracts (School Site Visit) 

 

Nov. 17 

 

Regular Board Meeting  High School 
 Intent form due (to serve as Board President or Vice President) (School Site Visit) 

 Set date for Annual Organizational meeting 

 Maintenance/Facilities Update 

 

Dec. 8 

 

 

Organizational Meeting District Office 
 Election of 2016/17 Board President and Clerk 

 First Interim Report 

 Budget Revision #2 

 Review of Special Education Contracts  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action/Discussion Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 82



 

 

Board Meeting Calendar, 2016/17 School Year 
 

Jan. 12 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 

 Report on Governor’s Budget Proposal                                           

 Preliminary enrollment projection for 2017/18 

 Property Tax Update 

 

Feb. 2 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 

 Budget projections and assumptions 

 Possible personnel action presented as information 

 Preliminary Review of Site Master Schedules 

 Maintenance/Facilities Update 

 

Mar. 2 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 

 Second Interim Report 

 Budget Revision #3 

 Possible personnel action (RIF) 

 Open House schedules reviewed 

 

Mar. 16 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 

 Budget projections and assumptions 

 TRAN Resolution  

 Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report  

 

Apr. 6 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 

 Board Priorities for 2017/18 Instructional Program Design  

 Review of Strategic plan and LCAP 

 Begin Superintendent Evaluation 

 California Day of the Teacher 

 Week of the CSEA Employee 

 Approve 2017/18 Board meeting calendar, Aug. – Dec.  

 

April 27 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 

 Review of Site Master Schedules 

 Review of Strategic plan and LCAP (as needed) 

 Review of Facilities Depreciation Schedule  
 

May 4 

 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Begin Superintendent Evaluation 

 California Day of the Teacher 

 Final Review of Site Master Schedules 

 Draft 2017/18 Board meeting calendar 

 Review of Strategic plan and LCAP 

 Safety/Discipline Report 
 

May 25 

 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Week of the CSEA Employee 

 Retiree Reception 

 Review Bell Schedule for 2017/18 

 Superintendent’s evaluation 

 Identify Board member representatives for graduation 

 Review Facility Use Fee Schedule 

 LCAP Public Hearing 

 Review Governor’s revised budget 

 Present 2017/18 Budget 

 Maintenance/Facilities Update 

 

June 8* 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 

 Adopt budget for 2017/18 

 Recommend approval of LCAP 

 Complete Superintendent Evaluation 

 

June 29* 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 

 Approval of contracts and purchase orders for 2017/18 

*Board to determine morning or evening meeting 

Action/Discussion Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 83



  

SUBJECT: Robert Down Elementary and Forest Grove Elementary Portables   
 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Matt Kelly, Director of Facilities & Transportation   
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and provide feedback for a portable classroom 

replacement at Robert Down Elementary School and a new portable at Forest Grove Elementary School. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 
Recently, the music room portable at Robert Down was found to have an infestation of subterranean termites.  A 

possible cause of this was a poor drainage design on the outside of the building.  Staff received estimates to repair 

the termite damage and bids started at $80,000 with no guarantee that more damage from termites, mold, and dry rot 

wouldn’t be found.  Considering the age of the portable and the uncertainty of repair scope, staff recommends 

replacement of portable.  In addition, Robert Down has identified a need for an additional portable.  Adding a 

second portable to the project would be significantly cheaper now, as opposed to later as a separate project.  

At Forest Grove there is a need for an extra classroom to accommodate four kindergarten classes in an effort to keep 

class sizes smaller.      

 

INFORMATION: 

 
Staff received multiple budget numbers from portable manufacturers, contractors, and architects.  For budgeting, all 

portables are 1,440 sf (36’x40’). 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund 40 will be used to pay for the project.  See attached budgets. 

  

Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 84



Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 85

Maintenance
Rectangle

Maintenance
Callout
Portable Location



Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 86

Maintenance
Rectangle

Maintenance
Callout
Portable Location



Description Quantity Unit Total

1. Demo Old Building 1 ls $20,000.00 $20,000.00

2. Site Work 5,000 sf $12.00 $60,000.00

3.
36x40 (1,440 SF) Relocatable (includes T1-11 

Siding, Wood Foundation, Carpet, HVAC)
1 ea $100,000.00 $100,000.00

4. Concrete Foundation 1,440 sf $22.00 $31,680.00

5. 4LF Sink & Countertop 1 ls $3,500.00 $3,500.00

Sub Total $215,180.00

General Conditions 15% $32,277.00

Soft Costs 15% $32,277.00

Contingency 10% $21,518.00

Total Robert Down (Single Portable) $301,252.00

ROBERT DOWN PORTABLE PROJECT

(Single Portable)
Preliminary Budget Nov 17, 2016

Robert Down

Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 87



Description Quantity Unit Total

ROBERT DOWN PORTABLE PROJECT

(Single Portable)
Preliminary Budget Nov 17, 2016

Description Quantity Unit Total

1. Demo Old Building 1 ls $20,000.00 $20,000.00

2. Site Work 5,000 sf $12.00 $60,000.00

3.
36x40 (1,440 SF) Relocatable (includes T1-11 

Siding, Wood Foundation, Carpet, HVAC)
2 ea $100,000.00 $200,000.00

4. Concrete Foundation 2,880 sf $22.00 $63,360.00

5. 4LF Sink & Countertop 2 ea $3,500.00 $7,000.00

Sub Total $350,360.00

General Conditions 12% $42,043.20

Soft Costs 15% $84,831.00

Contingency 5% $28,277.00

Total Robert Down (Double Portable) $505,511.20

Robert Down

ROBERT DOWN PORTABLE PROJECT

(Double Portable)
Preliminary Budget Nov 17, 2016

Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 88



Description Quantity Unit Total

ROBERT DOWN PORTABLE PROJECT

(Single Portable)
Preliminary Budget Nov 17, 2016

1. Site Work 5,000 sf $18.50 $92,500.00

2.
36x40 (1,440 SF) Relocatable (includes T1-11 

Siding, Wood Foundation, Carpet, HVAC)
1 ls $100,000.00 $100,000.00

3. Concrete Foundation 1,440 sf $22.00 $31,680.00

4. 4LF Sink & Countertop 1 ls $3,500.00 $3,500.00

5. Single Occupancy Restroom 1 ls $12,000.00 $12,000.00

Sub Total $239,680.00

General Conditions 15% $35,952.00

Soft Costs 15% $35,952.00

Contingency 10% $23,968.00

Total Forest Grove $335,552.00

Forest Grove

FOREST GROVE PORTABLE PROJECT
Preliminary Budget Nov 17, 2016

Information/Discussion Item A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 89



  

SUBJECT: Student Emotional Counseling Report 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Matt Bell, Pacific Grove High School Principal 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Pacific Grove High School Administration recommends that the Board review the information provided 

regarding counseling services offered to students at Pacific Grove High School.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

In the most recent California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS), students are asked a variety of questions 

regarding their physical health as well as their mental health. There were two areas that raised questions 

as to the significance of the answers and actions needed to address them: “During the past 12 months, did 

you ever feel so sad or hopeless almost every day for two weeks or more that you stopped doing some 

usual activities?” and “During the past 12 months, did you ever seriously consider attempting suicide?” 

In the 2015-16 California Healthy Kids Survey 27% and 32% of 9th and 11th grades respectively reported 

having chronic sad or hopeless feelings and 18% and 16% of 9th and 11th grade students respectively 

reported that they seriously considered suicide in the past 12 months. These numbers have remained 

consistent within 2-3 percentage points over the past few years and are below state, national and local 

statistics.  

 

INFORMATION: 

 

The Board of Education added additional hours to the Community Human Resources counselor. This 

presentation will focus on more in-depth data regarding feelings of depression and efforts to combat those 

feelings.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None 

 

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 90



Chronic sad or hopeless feelings over 
the past 12 months 

29.4
28

34

28

37

2730.4

25

28

36

32 32

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2010 2011 2013 2014 2015 2016

CA 9th

CA 11th

9th grade

11th grade

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 91



Reactions to emotional well-being

• Board of Education authorized 3 additional 
hours/week for Community Human Services at 
the high school.

• Assemblies were established with an emphasis on 
emotional health.

• Site Council set a goal to have questions asked 
during bulletin time regarding emotional health. 

• Faculty and counselors remind and refer students 
to Community Human Resources counselor. 

• Site Council also set aside $1,000 for additional 
hours if needed.

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 92



Current PGHS Counselor Stats

• Tue/Wed. , 8:30-3:00
• Seen 27 students , 10 of whom were seen only once or 

twice. Some were regarding a specific problem, others 
declined service.

• Last year 36 referrals, 21 of which were short term.
• Students seen for social, academic, familial stressors or 

more serious conditions such as depression, anxiety, 
etc. Similar reasons each year. 

• Efficacy depends on student motivation. Self-referral 
and/or mild/moderate depression report best results.

• Students who are required to go for substance abuse 
tend to be resistant and least receptive to counseling.

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 93



Current CHS Counselor Stats

• Mondays, 9-12:00 (no increase)

• 15 students have signed consent form

• Students seen regarding conflict resolution, 
setting educational goals, anger management, 
parental issues, social skills, anxiety.

• Students offered points if they attend counseling 
sessions, but it is generally felt that far fewer 
would attend if they were not offered points. 
Students report that while they like the 
counselor, they would rather not attend sessions.

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 94



Direction from here

• Current counselor has room for more referrals and 
anticipates the case load will increase, but not beyond 
current hours/capacity.

• Community High School reports the same. 
• Referral process has been effective from faculty to HS 

counselor and from HS to CHR counselor. At times, students 
preferred meeting with regular counselor.

• Trust and familiarity crucial in all cases.
• Continued focus on raising issues with students through 

questions in bulletin, assemblies, films, etc.
• CA. Healthy Kids Survey will be re-administered and a 

subsequent Site Council survey will be issued to track 
trends and take new actions if necessary. 

Information/Discussion Item B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 95



SUBJECT: Future Agenda Items 

 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 

  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Administration recommends that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct 

Administration to add items to the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Board Bylaw 9322 states in part that “Any member of the public or any Board member may request that a 

matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting. The request [from 

a member of the public] must be …. submitted to the Superintendent or designee with supporting 

documents and information …” 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

Board members have the opportunity at the end of Open Session in a Regular Board meeting to request 

that items be added to the list for a future meeting. Depending upon the timeliness of the item, it may also 

be assigned a particular meeting date. 

The following is a list of future agenda items as of the November 17, 2016 Regular Board Meeting:  

  

Senior Class Projects Review (December 8)  

Homework Policy Review (January 12) 

Bus Schedule 

Spanish Class at Elementary Schools 

Pebble Beach Housing Project 
 

 

Information/Discussion Item C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of November 17, 2016 96


	AGENDA
	CONSENT
	Minutes of October 27, 2016
	Certificated Assignment Order #6
	Classified Assignment Order #6
	Acceptance of Donations
	Out of County or Overnight Activities
	Warrant Schedules No. 577
	Community High School Graduation Requirements

	ACTION/DISCUSSION
	Resolution #986- Series B Ed Tech Bonds
	Coordinator of Technology Systems
	Board Calendar/Future Meetings

	INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	Robert Down and Forest Grove Elementary Portables
	Student Emotional Counseling Report
	Future Agenda Items


	REVISED: 


